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LDEQ ANSWERS TO PROPOSERS QUESTIONS 
RFP No.  5701-08-02 

“Leaking Underground Storage Tank (LUST) Post-Hurricane RECAP 
Evaluation Corrective Action Study” 

 
LDEQ’s answers to the following questions are intended to provide information to 
potential proposers questions to RFP No. 5701-08-02. 
 
Question 1:  Earlier this year you let a contract to perform Remedial 
Investigations at LUST sites. There was a condition that if we bid on this we 
could not perform subsequent phases. At the time we believed this to be a two 
phase program; one Engineering/Consulting phase and one contractor phase. 
We decided to bid on the 2nd phase. So we can make a decision as to which 
phase we want to bid on, could you outline all the phases and what the 
department might feel as an appropriate budget for each phase. As a second 
question; we understand why the engineering/consultant must be separated 
from Corrective Action contractor, but what conflicts would be created if we win 
the RECAP evaluation and was most qualified to do Corrective Action plans or 
oversee the contractor during Corrective Action? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  No, the Department cannot outline all phases of this 
project or an appropriate budget for each phase; however the Department 
anticipates that corrective action of hurricane-impacted facilities may be 
separated into multiple contracts. 
As stated in the RFP, the contractor who is selected to perform the work 
under this contract will be precluded from proposing on and performing 
any and all following phase work at these sites under contracts awarded 
by the LDEQ, as provided by federal post-hurricane grant funding.  This is 
applicable to all phases of work performed under the post hurricane 
funding. 

 
Question 2:  Could you give me an idea of what the project consists of and how 
to get the plans and specs? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  RFP Attachment 2, Statement of Work, provides all the 
project specific information, as well as, Contractor tasks.  There are no 
plans or specs. 

 
Question 3:  Is it more for consultants or contractors? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  The majority of work will be contractor, however, 
consulting work will be required. 
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Question 4:  Section 7.0 Measurements and Payments – Sections 7.2, 7.3, 7.6, 
7.7, 7.8, and 7.9.   
Question:  The statement, “Payment shall be made in one lump sum in the 
payment period following acceptance of the respective line item Task by LDEQ.”  
Does this statement mean that all sites for the listed lime items must be 
completed and accepted by LDEQ before contractor can invoice and receive 
payment?  For example, 100 units are listed for Additional Site Investigation in 
Attachment 4.  Does the contractor have to complete all 100 units and then 
submit one invoice or will the contractor be able to submit an invoice after 
acceptance for individual units.  One site = One Invoice or X number of sites = 
equal one Invoice. 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  Sample Contract Article 10 b, Invoicing and Payment, 
states that “Payment shall be made as monthly progress payments for line 
items 2 – 15.  Invoices shall be based upon the actual amount of work 
completed during the billing period or for work with performance periods of 
more than thirty (30) days, progress payments may be made at the 
discretion of LDEQ.”  A Progress Report that clearly supports the 
Contractor’s request for payment for the corresponding billing period must 
be included with each invoice. 

 
Question 5:  Will LDEQ provide all known information for each location to be 
evaluated?  This includes all previous reports relating to suspected, previous, 
and current known releases at the site, known environmental issues, and most 
recent owner/operator information if available.  What time frame can the 
contractor expect to receive requested information from LDEQ?  Will the 
contractor be reimbursed for work to obtain this information if LDEQ does not 
supply? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  The contractor will be provided with access to the 
LDEQ Electronic Data Management System (EDMS).  All available 
information for each site is viewable using EDMS. 

 
Question 6:  How many sites does the LDEQ anticipate releasing to the 
contractor to run concurrently?  Using the estimate of 100 units from Attachment 
4, will LDEQ release information for all 100 units at one time or will the units be 
release in increments? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  All sites may be released to the contractor at 
commencement; however it is anticipated that sites will be released in 
increments. 
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Question 7:  The RFP discusses time lines for completion of work by the 
contractor.  What is the time frame LDEQ will have to return a Notice of 
Deficiency for review of documents submitted by the contractor? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  LDEQ anticipates review and response between 14 and 
30 days of receipt of the submittal. 

 
Question 8:  For costing basis, what turn around time for analytical should the 
contractor use for pricing? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  Standard laboratory turn-around time is expected.  24 
or 48 hour turn-around on soil and groundwater analytical is not 
anticipated. 

 
Question 9:  How many LDEQ Project Managers will be involved in this 
contract?  If there is an issue between two LDEQ PMs prioritizing their sites, how 
will LDEQ mediate this situation to determine which site takes priority? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  The LDEQ will have one project manager for this 
contract.  Prioritization will be at the discretion of the LDEQ project 
manager. 

 
Question 10:  Will the contractor be responsible for signing all manifests 
associated with the disposal of IDW? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  The contractor will be required to sign a third party 
signature authorization that authorizes the contractor to perform certain 
acts as LDEQ’s agent for purposes of managing waste material that LDEQ 
may generate.  These acts include:  
• Completing and signing Generator Waste Profile Sheets 
• Completing and signing Generator Waste Profile Sheet-

Recertifications 
• Authorizing amendments to Generator Waste Profile Sheets 
• Signing certifications necessary to comply with landfill requirements, 

and 
• Signing manifests to initiate shipment to disposal facilities. 

 
Question 11:  Will the contractor sign off on access agreements or will the 
agreement be between LDEQ and the owner/operator? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  Access agreements will be obtained prior to 
implementation of this contract, and will therefore not be the responsibility 
of the contractor. 
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Question 12:  BTEX, TPH-Gasoline, and VPH soils require Encores.  How 
many of the units are estimated to be soils?  Should a separate line item for 
Encores be included in the Schedule of Prices? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  The contractor may assume a 3 to 1 soil to groundwater 
sample ratio for estimation of the analytical.  Method 5035 is required for 
solid VOC sampling; however the use of Encore devices is at the 
discretion of the contractor.  The preserved vial method is an approved 
alternative to Encore samplers. 

 
Question 13:  Method for BTEX, SW 8021 or 8260? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  Method 8260 
 
Question 14:  Schedule of Prices, Line item 10.  Are we to assume TPH 
Fractions refers to EPH and VPH? If not should VPH and EPH be separate line 
items? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  TPH fractions refers to EPH and VPH.  These will not 
be separate line items. 

 
Question 15:  Will the LDEQ provide a list of the sites and their locations related 
to this RFP? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  LDEQ will provide site information at the 
commencement conference.  A full site list may be available at that time; 
however it is anticipated that sites will be released to the contractor in 
increments.  The list of sites will not be provided prior to contract award.  
Sites will be located in the 11 parishes impacted by hurricanes Katrina and 
Rita. 

 
Question 16:  Did the contractor that performed the original Phase II site 
assessments provide LDEQ with electronic versions of the reports, including 
maps and tables? If so, are the files in pdf, Work, Cadd formats? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  All site information will be available to the contractor 
through LDEQ’s Electronic Data Management System (EDMS).  Electronic 
copies are not anticipated. 
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Question 17:  Did the original contractor provide the LDEQ with a surveyed map 
of the site? If so, did the contractor provide survey data information, such as top 
of casing elevations for production of potentiometric water table maps? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  No, the original contractor did not provide true surveyed 
maps of the sites.  Each site was measured; however the contractor for 
5701-08-02 shall be responsible for verifying the accuracy of the previous 
contractor’s measurements.  Groundwater monitoring wells were not 
installed as part of the first LUST Post Hurricane contract.  Top of casing 
measurements for temporary piezometers were surveyed in relation to 
one another 

 
Question 18:  Will the contractor be required to provide a surveyed site map of 
the reports? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  No. 
 
Question 19:  Section 3.2 (C) (7) RECAP Submittals: requires RECAP Forms 2, 
and 10-17 for the submittals. Will LDEQ allow other spreadsheets/forms in a 
different format as long as the same information is provided as the RECAP 
forms? 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  RECAP Forms 2 and 10-17 are required. 
 
Question 20:  Could LDEQ modify the costing spreadsheet for borings? There 
may be projects that require one (1) boring to 4 or 5 feet for SPLP or TPH 
fractionation; or another foot if you could provide a more detailed pricing 
structure for additional investigation requirements. 
 

LDEQ’s answer:  The contractor shall propose per foot for Line Item 4, 
Direct Push Soil Borings for Additional Site Assessment.  A separate line 
item will not be created for borings installed for the purposes of collecting 
soil for SPLP or TPH fractionation. 
 


